The CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH
Planning Board Minutes

City Hall 301 South Ridgewood Avenue
Commission Chambers Thursday, November 15, 2018
Regular Meeting 6:00 PM

Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if any person decides to appeal any decision made by this
Board at this public meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and, for that purpose, such
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City does not prepare or provide such a
record.

Help for the hearing impaired is
available through the Assistive
Listening System. Receivers can be
obtained from the City Clerk's Office.

For special accommodations,
please notify the City Clerk's
Office at least 72 hours in
advance. (386) 671-8020

Board Members Present:
James Newman, Vice Chair

Tony Barhoo

Jeff Hurt

Tony Servance

Helen Humphreys

James Neal

Board Members Absent:
Cathy Washington, Chair

Staff Members Present:

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Director
Robert Jagger, City Attorney

Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director
Kathy Gademer, Planning Manager
Hannah Ward, Planner

Marianne Pulaski, Planning Technician
Becky Groom, Board Secretary

Call to Order

Mr. Newman called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.



Roll Call

The roll was called and members were noted present as stated above.

Approval of the Minutes - October 25, 2018

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve the minutes of the October
25, 2018 meeting as presented. The motion carried (6-0).

NEW ITEMS:

Preliminary Plat - Latitude at Daytona Beach, Phase 3A and 3B,
DEV2018-107 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Dennis Mrozek, Planning Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr.
Mrozek stated the property is located in the northeast area of Parcel B of the Minto Planned
Development and consists of 522 single family lots.

Applicant Presentation:
John Townsend, 2200 Park Avenue, Winter Park, was in attendance representing the applicant, Donald
W. Mcintosh, Inc.

Public Comments:

Stephen Kerson, 144 Joyelle Circle, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated he recently moved into the area and
stated Substation 834 is producing a large humming sound that is so loud he must close his hurricane
shutters to reduce the noise. Mr. Kerson stated he feels a sound deafening wall should be placed around
the substation to reduce the noise.

Ms. Humphreys stated what Mr. Kerson is having to endure is unacceptable and FPL should address the
issue.

Mr. Barhoo stated as more homes are developed, more power will be pulled from the substation and he
feels the developer and the City should look into Mr. Kerson's concerns.

Mr. Mrozek stated he will look into Mr. Kerson's concerns with the City's liaison with FPL.

James Cameron, Senior Vice President, Daytona Chamber, 126 E. Orange Avenue, stated the Chamber
would like to go on record in support of this project.

Board Action:



A motion was made by Mr. Hurt, seconded by Mr. Neal, to approve Preliminary Plat - Latitude at
Daytona Beach, Phase 3A and 3B, DEV2018-107, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The
motion carried (6-0).

Rezoning to Redevelopment Midtown-Neighborhood Center Mixed Use (RDM2) - China One,
DEV2018-067 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet.
Mr. Berger stated this is a request for rezoning from Single Family to Commercial District RDM2 at the
southeast corner of Bellevue and School Street in order to allow for additional parking for the
commercial site. Mr. Berger stated this item was reviewed by the Midtown Redevelopment Board since
the proposed parking area is within the Midtown Redevelopment Area. Mr. Berger stated the Midtown
Redevelopment Board recommended approval of the rezoning.

Mr. Barhoo stated at the Midtown Redevelopment Board, the applicant indicated a final determination
has not been made as to the type of business that will be located on this site and a grocery store may not
be located there. Mr. Barhoo stated Board members also expressed concern about traffic in the area.

Application Presentation:

Rashid Jamalabad, RJ Engineering, LLC, was in attendance on behalf of the property owner, Wang
Tianfu. Mr. Jamalabad stated the applicant applied for a grocery store at this site but the applicant may
look at other options in order to generate the revenue that the applicant is hoping to receive.

Public Comments:

There were no public comments.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Rezoning to Redevelopment
Midtown-Neighborhood Center Mixed Use (RDM2) - China One, DEV2018-067, in accordance with the
staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0).

Site Plan - 500 East Apartments. DEV2018-098 (Quasi-Judicial
Hearing)

Staff Presentation:

Hannah Ward, Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Ms. Ward
stated the project will consist of a 310 unit multi-family complex. Ms. Ward noted there will be two
access points for the 13 buildings. Ms. Ward stated the number of required parking spaces and the
requested monument signs are in compliance.

Mr. Barhoo expressed concern about traffic since LPGA is very congested. Mr. Barhoo also asked about
the wildlife that currently exists in the area.

Applicant Presentation:



Parker Mynchenberg, 1729 Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated traffic studies have been
completed and a Fair Share Agreement is planned to be presented to the City Commission. Mr.
Mynchenberg stated St. Johns has purchased large tracts of land which will provide acreage for the
displaced animals.

Public Comments:

John Nicholson, 413 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida asked what the average square footage will
be for the units, if the units will be 2 or 3 bedroom, average rental pricing, and if the units will be
affordable housing.

Mr. Mynchenberg stated the units will be 2 and 3 bedroom and some will have a garage. Mr.
Mynchenberg stated he does not know what the monthly rents will be but the units will not be subsidized
housing.

Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Site Plan - 500 East
Apartments, DEV2018-098, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0).

Other Business

1. Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board Report
Ms. Washington was not in attendance to provide a report.

2. Midtown Redevelopment Area Board Report
Mr. Barhoo stated the Board met on November 13, 2018 and reviewed the China One Rezoning
which was on the Planning Board agenda this evening. Mr. Barhoo stated Light Up Midtown will
be held on December 8, 2018 and the Senior Prom will be held on December 14, 2018. Mr.
Barhoo stated reports were received from Police and Code Enforcement; and the Police
Department stated crime has been very low in the City.

3. Beachside Redevelopment Area Board Report
Mr. Newman stated the Beachside Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in November.

4. Public Comments
Jim Cameron, Senior Vice President, the Chamber, 129 Orange Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida
provided the Board members with an invitation to attend a program regarding Work Force
Housing.

Ms. Humphreys stated the City of Detroit has a program where smaller homes are built which are
more affordable; and the program has been very successful.

John Nicholson, 413 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida stated affordance housing is needed
in the area and should be planned for the area.

Anne Ruby, 137 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated affordable housing is needed in the
City and the City should conduct an economic impact study. Ms. Ruby stated developers
approach the city asking for projects to be approved; and the city should create a partnership with
developers to construct work force housing sites.



Ms. Ward stated in order to provide work force housing, a designation must be received from the
State of Florida which the City currently does not have.

Sandy Murphy, 135 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated there are ways to promote work
force housing without using State funding.

Staff Comments
Mr. Mrozek stated the schedule of Planning Board meetings is included in the packet and
requires approval by the Planning Board.

. Board Action:

A motion was made by Mr. Hurt, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve the proposed schedule
of meetings for the Planning Board for 2019, in accordance with the staff report as presented.
The motion carried (6-0).

Mr. Mrozek stated the election of officers for the Planning Board will be held at the December
20, 2018 meeting. Mr. Mrozek stated Ms. Washington could be elected Chair again since her first
term as Chair was to fill an unexpired term of the previous Chair.

Mr. Mrozek introduced Kathy Gademer who is the City's new Planning Manager.

Board Member Comments
Mr. Barhoo asked about Green Leaf Pharmaceutical which is located in Midtown.

Mr. Mrozek stated the business has been open for about 6 months and there have been no
incidents at the site. Mr. Mrozek stated there may be other locations opening in the city and this
location appears to be successful.

Ms. Ward stated the Building Department advised her that over $1,000,000 in renovations were
done to the building where the pharmacy is located.

Ms. Humphreys stated Light Up Main Street is planned for December 11, 2018 and she hopes the
electrical connections will be working, which they currently are not. Ms. Humphreys also stated
there is a curb on Main Street where a bumper has been placed in the middle of the sidewalk
which is a trip hazard.

Mr. Servance stated work force housing is needed in this community and he supports it.

Mr. Newman stated there are currently great programs in place to help first time home buyers
with the down payment. Mr. Newman stated Habitat for Humanity has also built many homes in
the area to provide affordable homes and he would support providing more money to that
program in order to allow additional homes to be built. Mr. Newman stated there is a need for
better paying jobs in the area. Mr. Newman stated he feels uses should be defined since a
question was raised at the Midtown Redevelopment Board regarding grocery stores. Mr.
Newman stated there was discussion about grocery stores and convenience stores and perhaps the
two uses should be better defined.

Mr. Neal stated he is thankful he has been able to serve on the Planning Board for 12 years and
feels he is very fortunate.



.//’; %7/7/’5"'"

- W

Jaries Newman, Vice Chair Jeff Hi rt, Secretary



	City logo 
	City logo 
	Agenda information 
	The CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH
	Planning Board Minutes
	Meeting information
	Additional meeting information
	City Hall
	Commission Chambers
	Regular Meeting
	301 South Ridgewood Avenue
	Thursday, November 15, 2018
	6:00 PM
	Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if any person decides to appeal any decision made by this Board at this public meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings and, for that purpose, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City does not prepare or provide such a record. 
	Universal
	Universal symbol of accessibility
	Special accommodation information
	Universal symbol for hearing impaired support
	Hearing-impaired support information
	/
	For special accommodations, please notify the City Clerk's Office at least 72 hours in advance. (386) 671-8020
	/
	Help for the hearing impaired is available through the Assistive Listening System. Receivers can be obtained from the City Clerk's Office.
	Special accommodation information
	Layout table for Agenda Body Information
	Board Members Present: 
	James Newman, Vice Chair 
	Tony Barhoo 
	Jeff Hurt 
	Tony Servance 
	Helen Humphreys 
	James Neal 

	Board Members Absent:
	Cathy Washington, Chair 

	Staff Members Present: 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Director 
	Robert Jagger, City Attorney 
	Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 
	Kathy Gademer, Planning Manager 
	Hannah Ward, Planner 
	Marianne Pulaski, Planning Technician 
	Becky Groom, Board Secretary 

	Call to Order 
	Mr. Newman called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

	Roll Call 
	The roll was called and members were noted present as stated above. 

	Approval of the Minutes - October 25, 2018 
	Board Action:
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve the minutes of the October 25, 2018 meeting as presented. The motion carried (6-0). 

	NEW ITEMS:
	Preliminary Plat - Latitude at Daytona Beach, Phase 3A and 3B, DEV2018-107 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Dennis Mrozek, Planning Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Mrozek stated the property is located in the northeast area of Parcel B of the Minto Planned Development and consists of 522 single family lots. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	John Townsend, 2200 Park Avenue, Winter Park, was in attendance representing the applicant, Donald W. Mcintosh, Inc. 

	Public Comments: 
	Stephen Kerson, 144 Joyelle Circle, Daytona Beach, Florida, stated he recently moved into the area and stated Substation 834 is producing a large humming sound that is so loud he must close his hurricane shutters to reduce the noise. Mr. Kerson stated he feels a sound deafening wall should be placed around the substation to reduce the noise. 
	Ms. Humphreys stated what Mr. Kerson is having to endure is unacceptable and FPL should address the issue. 
	Mr. Barhoo stated as more homes are developed, more power will be pulled from the substation and he feels the developer and the City should look into Mr. Kerson's concerns. 
	Mr. Mrozek stated he will look into Mr. Kerson's concerns with the City's liaison with FPL. 
	James Cameron, Senior Vice President, Daytona Chamber, 126 E. Orange Avenue, stated the Chamber would like to go on record in support of this project. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Hurt, seconded by Mr. Neal, to approve Preliminary Plat - Latitude at Daytona Beach, Phase 3A and 3B, DEV2018-107, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0). 
	Rezoning to Redevelopment Midtown-Neighborhood Center Mixed Use (RDM2) - China One, DEV2018-067 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 

	Staff Presentation: 
	Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Mr. Berger stated this is a request for rezoning from Single Family to Commercial District RDM2 at the southeast corner of Bellevue and School Street in order to allow for additional parking for the commercial site. Mr. Berger stated this item was reviewed by the Midtown Redevelopment Board since the proposed parking area is within the Midtown Redevelopment Area. Mr. Berger stated the Midtown Redevelopment Board recommended approval of the rezoning. 
	Mr. Barhoo stated at the Midtown Redevelopment Board, the applicant indicated a final determination has not been made as to the type of business that will be located on this site and a grocery store may not be located there. Mr. Barhoo stated Board members also expressed concern about traffic in the area. 

	Application Presentation: 
	Rashid Jamalabad, RJ Engineering, LLC, was in attendance on behalf of the property owner, Wang Tianfu. Mr. Jamalabad stated the applicant applied for a grocery store at this site but the applicant may look at other options in order to generate the revenue that the applicant is hoping to receive. 

	Public Comments: 
	There were no public comments. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Rezoning to Redevelopment Midtown-Neighborhood Center Mixed Use (RDM2) - China One, DEV2018-067, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0). 

	Site Plan - 500 East Apartments. DEV2018-098 (Quasi-Judicial Hearing) 
	Staff Presentation: 
	Hannah Ward, Planner, presented the staff report which is included as part of the packet. Ms. Ward stated the project will consist of a 310 unit multi-family complex. Ms. Ward noted there will be two access points for the 13 buildings. Ms. Ward stated the number of required parking spaces and the requested monument signs are in compliance. 
	Mr. Barhoo expressed concern about traffic since LPGA is very congested. Mr. Barhoo also asked about the wildlife that currently exists in the area. 

	Applicant Presentation: 
	Parker Mynchenberg, 1729 Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated traffic studies have been completed and a Fair Share Agreement is planned to be presented to the City Commission. Mr. Mynchenberg stated St. Johns has purchased large tracts of land which will provide acreage for the displaced animals. 

	Public Comments: 
	John Nicholson, 413 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida asked what the average square footage will be for the units, if the units will be 2 or 3 bedroom, average rental pricing, and if the units will be affordable housing. 
	Mr. Mynchenberg stated the units will be 2 and 3 bedroom and some will have a garage. Mr. Mynchenberg stated he does not know what the monthly rents will be but the units will not be subsidized housing. 

	Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Barhoo, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve Site Plan - 500 East Apartments, DEV2018-098, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0). 

	Other Business 

	1. Downtown/Ballough Road Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Ms. Washington was not in attendance to provide a report. 
	2. Midtown Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Mr. Barhoo stated the Board met on November 13, 2018 and reviewed the China One Rezoning which was on the Planning Board agenda this evening. Mr. Barhoo stated Light Up Midtown will be held on December 8, 2018 and the Senior Prom will be held on December 14, 2018. Mr. Barhoo stated reports were received from Police and Code Enforcement; and the Police Department stated crime has been very low in the City. 
	3. Beachside Redevelopment Area Board Report 
	Mr. Newman stated the Beachside Redevelopment Area Board did not meet in November. 
	4. Public Comments 
	Jim Cameron, Senior Vice President, the Chamber, 129 Orange Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida provided the Board members with an invitation to attend a program regarding Work Force Housing. 
	Ms. Humphreys stated the City of Detroit has a program where smaller homes are built which are more affordable; and the program has been very successful. 
	John Nicholson, 413 N. Grandview, Daytona Beach, Florida stated affordance housing is needed in the area and should be planned for the area. 
	Anne Ruby, 137 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated affordable housing is needed in the City and the City should conduct an economic impact study. Ms. Ruby stated developers approach the city asking for projects to be approved; and the city should create a partnership with developers to construct work force housing sites. 
	Ms. Ward stated in order to provide work force housing, a designation must be received from the State of Florida which the City currently does not have. 
	Sandy Murphy, 135 Park Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida stated there are ways to promote work force housing without using State funding. 
	5. Staff Comments 
	Mr. Mrozek stated the schedule of Planning Board meetings is included in the packet and requires approval by the Planning Board. 
	6. Board Action: 
	A motion was made by Mr. Hurt, seconded by Mr. Servance, to approve the proposed schedule of meetings for the Planning Board for 2019, in accordance with the staff report as presented. The motion carried (6-0). 
	Mr. Mrozek stated the election of officers for the Planning Board will be held at the December 20, 2018 meeting. Mr. Mrozek stated Ms. Washington could be elected Chair again since her first term as Chair was to fill an unexpired term of the previous Chair. 
	Mr. Mrozek introduced Kathy Gademer who is the City's new Planning Manager. 
	7. Board Member Comments 
	Mr. Barhoo asked about Green Leaf Pharmaceutical which is located in Midtown. 
	Mr. Mrozek stated the business has been open for about 6 months and there have been no incidents at the site. Mr. Mrozek stated there may be other locations opening in the city and this location appears to be successful. 
	Ms. Ward stated the Building Department advised her that over $1,000,000 in renovations were done to the building where the pharmacy is located. 
	Ms. Humphreys stated Light Up Main Street is planned for December 11, 2018 and she hopes the electrical connections will be working, which they currently are not. Ms. Humphreys also stated there is a curb on Main Street where a bumper has been placed in the middle of the sidewalk which is a trip hazard. 
	Mr. Servance stated work force housing is needed in this community and he supports it. 
	Mr. Newman stated there are currently great programs in place to help first time home buyers with the down payment. Mr. Newman stated Habitat for Humanity has also built many homes in the area to provide affordable homes and he would support providing more money to that program in order to allow additional homes to be built. Mr. Newman stated there is a need for better paying jobs in the area. Mr. Newman stated he feels uses should be defined since a question was raised at the Midtown Redevelopment Board regarding grocery stores. Mr. Newman stated there was discussion about grocery stores and convenience stores and perhaps the two uses should be better defined. 
	Mr. Neal stated he is thankful he has been able to serve on the Planning Board for 12 years and feels he is very fortunate.




Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		Minutes - November 15, 2018.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 1



		Passed manually: 1



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 3



		Passed: 27



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Passed manually		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Skipped		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Skipped		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



